
  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, June 02, 2022 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission will conduct a public hearing meeting on June 

02, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, GA. The following agenda will be considered: 
 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes- May 5, 2022 

Requests 
5. Request by Roger Reaves to rezone 13.51 acres on Edward Reaves Road from AG to R-

1. [Map 061, Part of Parcel 023, District 2]. * 

6. Request by Jeremy Crosby, agent for William B. Jones to rezone 0.94 acres at 114 

Briarpatch Road from R-2 to C-1. [Map 096B, Part of Parcel 063, District 1]. * Applicant 

is requesting to withdraw without prejudice. 
7. Request by Brandon Burgess, agent for Molfin Investments, LLC for conditional use at 

170 Scott Road. [Map 102, Parcel 001002, District 3]. * 

New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 21, 2022 at 6:30 P.M., in 

the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event 

the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members 

of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of 

the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established 

in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 

706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

1



File Attachments for Item:

4. Approval of Minutes- May 5, 2022

2



 

 

   PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Minutes 

Thursday, May 05, 2022, ◊ 6:30 pm 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Alan Foster called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 

2. Attendance 

Present: Chairman Alan Foster, Vice Chairman Maurice Hill, Member Martha Farley, 

Member Harold Jones, Member John Mitchell, Courtney Andrews, Angela Waldroup, 

Attorney Adam Nelson 

Ms. Courtney Andrews called the Attendance. 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Ms. Courtney Andrews read the Rules of Procedures. 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes- February 03, 2022 & April 07, 2022 

 

Motion: Vice Chairman Hill made the motion to approve the February 03, 2022 & April 

07, 2022 minutes 

Second: Member Mitchell. 

Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Hill, Member Farley, Member Jones, Member Mitchell, 

Chairman Foster 

Requests 
5. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle to rezone 19.45 acres at 842 

Harmony Road from AG to C-2. [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1]. *Mr. Brittain 

Hunt represented this request. 

 

Mr. Hunt stated that the development would be primarily used for mini warehouses, 

outdoor parking, and potential commercial retail space. The traffic study suggested a 

deceleration lane and left turn lane at all entrances. The development is compatible with 

existing and future uses for surrounding developments on Harmony Road. There were a 

number of staff recommendations that were conducive to their client. 

 

Chairman Foster stated that on the left-hand side of Harmony Road, there had been a 

precedence set on the ten properties leading to the subject property. It was intended to 

restrict how deep commercial properties were allowed to go back off the road. He referenced 

the map, stating that there were 10 properties limited to the 400-foot depth. They were all 

required to have a vegetated barrier behind them in order to protect the agricultural and 

residential properties behind them. While there are C-1 and C-2 on that side of Harmony 

Road, most of the C-2 with depth are on the right side of the road. Farriers Lane leads to 

multiple residential properties. He further stated that personally, he would not like to set the 

precedence off Harmony Road leading to the lakefront homes. If they were to set the 

precedence, it would allow commercial property all along the road. The initial agreement 

was made to limit the road frontage. People were insured that they would not have 

incremental encroachment by commercial properties. He added that he did not have 

questions, but he had an issue with the size of the property being requested to become C-2. 

3



 

 

 

Member Mitchell stated that he thought it was important to hear from other people who 

may have had an issue with the request. When the request came before the board initially, 

residents had concerns about the lighting. He wanted to give them the opportunity to speak. 

 

Chairman Foster stated that he probably overstepped by making his comment right away, 

but he was pretty emotional about the subject and wanted to get his feelings about it, up 

front.  

 

Erin Olson spoke in opposition to the request 

 

Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone 19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road 

from AG to C-2 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] with the following conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with 

the Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & 

Encroachment Control to service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional 

right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be 

dedicated by the developer to the county. It shall be completed by the developer 

prior to the completion of phase one. 

2. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, 

Parcel 061. 

3. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, 

Parcel 033.  

4. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the 

proposed 20.80-acre RM-3 parcel. 

5. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation 

in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of 

approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed 

with the planning and development department director. Failure to file a plat 

pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the rezoning action 

as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

  

Member Mitchell asked if there were any other speakers on the request. 

 

There was no one else signed in to speak on this request.  

 

In response to the opposition and concerns, Mr. Hunt stated that the vegetated barrier 

would be put in place, and they would comply to respect the surrounding properties. 

 

Motion: Vice Chairman Hill made the motion to approve the request by Rick McAllister, 

agent for Jacqueline Trinkle to rezone 19.45 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to C-

2. [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] with the following conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with 

the Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & 

Encroachment Control to service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional 

right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be 

dedicated by the developer to the county. It shall be completed by the developer 

prior to the completion of phase one. 

4



 

 

2. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, 

Parcel 061. 

3. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, 

Parcel 033.  

4. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the 

proposed 20.80-acre RM-3 parcel. 

5. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation 

in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of 

approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed 

with the planning and development department director. Failure to file a plat 

pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the rezoning action 

as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

Second: Member Farley 

 

Chairman Foster opened the floor for discussion from the board. 

 

Vice Chairman Hill stated that growth and safety of the community is important. As a 

board they should not vote based on preferences but based on the ordinances and 

recommendations. 

 

Member Jones stated that he was concerned about the other C-2 property owners that were 

restricted to the 400-foot depth. How could they have an answer for them if nothing has 

been changed but allow an increase of 1000 feet. 

 

Chairman Foster stated that he agreed with Member Jones and believes that precedence is 

an important part of approving or denying rezoning request, to protect the aesthetics and 

value of properties. The staff recommendations mentioned buffers and traffic but had no 

discussion about it being a new type of commercial development encroaching on the lake 

area and entry roads into the residential lake areas. He did not think this was acceptable. 

Looking at the map it showed 10 lots of 13 business that were restricted to the 400-foot 

depths. Then all of a sudden, they would allow a property several times that depth. He was 

at a loss as to why staff would make a recommendation to approve the request. 

 

Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Hill, Member Farley 

Voting Nay: Member Jones, Member Mitchell, Chairman Foster 

 

The request was denied by a vote of 3 to 2.  

 

6. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Jacqueline Trinkle to rezone 20.80 acres at 842 

Harmony Road from AG to RM-3. [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1]. * Mr. 

Brittain Hunt represented this request. 

 

Mr. Hunt stated that the parcel was intended to be subdivided into lots of .16 acres to .22 

acres. There are currently townhomes adjacent to the property, close to the water. At the 

suggestion of staff, they attended on complying with the deceleration lanes, left-hand turn 

lane, buffers, resurveying, and recordation.  

  

No one spoke in opposition 

5



 

 

 

Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone 20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road 

from AG to RM-3 [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] with the following 

conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with 

the Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & 

Encroachment Control to service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional 

right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be 

dedicated by the developer to the county. It shall be completed by the developer 

prior to the completion of phase one. 

2. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, 

Parcel 033 and Map 097, Parcel 033001.  

3. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the R-1R 

Single Family lots identified as Map 097 Parcels 056006, 056007, 056008, and 

056009. 

4. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation 

in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of 

approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed 

with the planning and development department director. Failure to file a plat 

pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the rezoning action 

as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

Member Mitchell stated that he was puzzled by the comment regarding encroachment 

control, as it relates to the entrance on Harmony Road. He asked if the property bordered 

Harmony Road. He stated that the plat provided did not have direct to Harmony Road. 

 

Ms. Andrews displayed the concept plan and confirmed that there would only be access on 

Harmony Road. 

 

Chairman Foster stated that he has no reason to object residential property, but he had 

concerns of the allowances in the RM-3 zoning district. It is the least restricted of the 

residential zoning. He thought that there had been some questions of discontinuing the 

zoning. He asked Mr. Hunt to explain the choice of RM-3.  

 

Mr. Hunt stated that Mr. McAllister applied for the request and would be happy to provide 

that information. 

 

Chairman Foster asked if there were any other questions or observations from the 

commission. 

 

Member Mitchell stated that he had serious reservations about approving the RM-3 

rezoning request because it allows commercial development.  

 

Attorney Nelson clarified the allowed commercial use in the RM-3 zoning as written in 

Section 66-96(b) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

 

Vice Chairman Hill stated that he was making a recommendation for approval based on the 

current regulations. If the community sees the need for some restructuring, maybe that is 

6



 

 

something they can talk about. He made his recommendation based on the current rules and 

structures of today. 

 

Motion: Vice Chairman Hill made a motion to approve the request by Rick McAllister, 

agent for Jacqueline Trinkle to rezone 20.80 acres at 842 Harmony Road from AG to RM-

3. [Map 097, Part of Parcel 060, District 1] with the following conditions: 

1. The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with 

the Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & 

Encroachment Control to service the two entrances on Harmony Road. Additional 

right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be 

dedicated by the developer to the county. It shall be completed by the developer 

prior to the completion of phase one. 

2. A 20-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut Map 097, 

Parcel 033 and Map 097, Parcel 033001.  

3. A 50-foot undisturbed vegetated buffer along the property lines that abut the R-1R 

Single Family lots identified as Map 097 Parcels 056006, 056007, 056008, and 

056009. 

4. This rezoning approval shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation 

in the Superior Court of Putnam County of an accurate plat within 60 days of 

approval by the board of commissioners. A copy of the recorded plat shall be filed 

with the planning and development department director. Failure to file a plat 

pursuant to this subsection shall have the effect of invalidating the rezoning action 

as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

Second: Member Farley 

 

No further discussion  

 

Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Hill, Member Farley, Chairman Foster 

Voting Nay: Member Jones, Member Mitchell 

 

The request was approved by a vote of 3 to 2.  

 

Items 7- 9 were heard as one. 

 

7. Request by Adam Schulze to rezone 11.604 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to 

AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 3]. * Attorney Matt Roessing represented this 

request. 

 

Attorney Roessing stated that he had issues with the staff recommendations, and he 

submitted a letter in response to his concerns. The issue began with a pond. Mr. Schulze 

built the pond on 3 acres that he owned. He did research and determined that if it was an 

agricultural pond, it was regulated federal law and US Army Corps of Engineers. Therefore, 

he did not have to get a permit or permission from the county, and he built the pond. He 

wanted to use the pond to irrigate an existing hay field. He has horses and wants to add goats 

and chickens to establish a family farm. The neighbors reported this to Director Jackson. 

She asked what was going on and Mr. Schulze explained the situation to her. She ordered 

him to stop all work so that they could look into the manner. He called the US Army Corp of 

Engineers, Georgia Environmental Protection Division, and included Ms. Jackson. After 

7



 

 

several conversations, they told Ms. Jackson that Mr. Schulze was allowed to build an 

agricultural pond and it was acceptable without permitting from the county if it was an 

agricultural pond. At the time, both Mr. Schulze and Ms. Jackson believed the land was 

agricultural and found out later that it was not. He added that the property looked 

agricultural and was formerly zoned agricultural. Being residential, it needed to be rezoned 

so that Mr. Schulze could use the land how he would like and keep the pond. The pond has 

been there for several months without causing problems to the anyone. The county inspected 

the pond and the dam and stated that it is stable and clean. Mr. Schulze had been dealing 

with this issue for about seven months. The citations were dismissed, and the solution was to 

request a rezoning. The US Army Corps of Engineers has stated that if the land is zoned 

agricultural, it is allowed. The board would decide whether it would be appropriate for the 

property to be agriculturally zoned. He added that it should be rezoned agricultural because 

it was previously zoned agricultural. The current use and future land use is agricultural use. 

He was not sure of what the solution would be. If they had to fill or drain the pond, it would 

be catastrophic plants and animals that live in it. The pond covers 3 parcels. There are some 

residential properties to the north of the properties and agricultural properties to the south on 

Scuffleboro Road. Neighbors wrote letters in support of the request, and they were not 

included in the report. The staff recommendations stated that people complained but there 

were no written complaints. He stated that those who would speak in opposition, would say 

that the agricultural use would affect their property. It could not be true because at the time 

the parcels were subdivided, they were all agricultural. Many of them moved there, knowing 

they lived next to an agricultural use. It has since changed, and they would like to change it 

back. Attorney Roessing made several references to his slide included in the packet. In the 

comprehensive plan, there are many residential uses that abut agricultural uses. The 2017 

comprehensive plan decided that the subject parcels were appropriate for agricultural and 

forestry use. 

 

Vice Chairman Hill asked when did the property get rezoned to residential. 

 

Attorney Roessing responded 2006. 

 

Vice Chairman Hill asked what the reason was for changing it from agriculture to 

residential. 

 

Attorney Roessing speculated that he believed the intent was to turn it into residential and 

subdivide it to create a residential gated community that was never developed. Mr. Schulze 

and his family purchased multiple lots in the area. They did not want a residential 

subdivision. They would love this to be a small family farm. 

 

Member Mitchell asked was the request made to the Army Corps of Engineers, prior to the 

development. 

 

Attorney Roessing stated that permission was not needed as long as you meet the 

requirements. If they were to find out that it did not qualify later, you would be in trouble. 

You do not have to have prior approval from them. Mr. Schulze started to build the pond to 

their regulations but did not reach out to them initially. Once Director Jackson raised the 

issue, he brought the experts out. The Army Corps of Engineers stated in writing that it was 

approved. The Army Corps of Engineers and Georgia EPD will consistently monitor the 

8



 

 

pond. If it is found that there is a problem with the pond, soil sediment coming out of the 

pond, or it injures surrounding landowners, Mr. Schulze would have to pay for it. 

 

Member Mitchell stated that he received the Attorney’s letter and read that the protocol 

calls for notification to The Army Corps of Engineers prior to any development. As a result, 

he feels inadequate in trying to decide without further time to learn more about the current 

procedures. 

 

Attorney Nelson stated that it is important to focus the boards questions to what is before 

them today. In the fall of 2021, the county received notice that there was a pond being built 

on the three parcels. Without knowing the nature of the pond, staff issued a stop work order 

as protocol. It was determined that it was an agricultural pond on October 25, 2021, by The 

Army Corps of Engineers. He suggested that there were different jurisdictions involved. He 

did not believe the entities were required to take the findings of one another with respect to 

zoning. Both The Army Corps of Engineers and EPD were satisfied with the pond. A lot of 

the issues by Attorney Roessing were due to enforcement actions of the county when they 

were not aware the pond was AG. The case went to state court and was outside of staff and 

the board’s control. It was eventually dismissed. Local governments, under Georgia law, are 

limited to their ability to regulate farm ponds. Just as a recreational pond is built, the 

standards used to regulate it are inapplicable to farm ponds. It was after the owner 

established that the pond was agricultural, that the new zoning enforcement mechanism 

began. The use of the property is in violation of the zoning ordinances. The applicant 

responded by requesting to rezone the property to a zoning designation that would allow the 

use and remove the problem. The question before this body is whether or not the rezoning 

application should be followed. There is no requirement in the ordinance that a property be 

in compliance at the time an application is received. It is important to know that this is not 

the first time the county has received comments from the public about this property. For 4 or 

5 months, landowners adjacent to the area have addressed their issues with the development 

at public hearings. He advised the board to evaluate the rezoning factors that are in the code 

regarding whether or not this property should be zoned residential or agricultural.  

 

The following people spoke in favor of the request and were given 3 minutes each: 

 

William Atkinson 

Adam Schulze 

Johnny Pressley 

Connie Barnes 

George Barnes 

 

The following people spoke in opposition of the request and were given 3 minutes each: 

 

Marianne Bruhn Popik 

Sue Gentes 

Duane Gentes 

Pam Tibbits 

 

Attorney Roessing used the remainder of his time  

 

9



 

 

He stated that the board should decide if the land was appropriate to be rezoned to AG and 

did the request meet the rezoning criteria. The pond had been approved by the Army Corps 

of Engineers and Georgia EPD and they will monitor and regulate it. Mr. Schulze wants to 

be a good neighbor and work out any issues.  

 

Vice Chairman Hill stated that the pond was created while the property was zoned R-1, and 

it was clear when the property was changed for AG to R-1. 

 

Attorney Roessing stated that he did not think it was clear because Mr. Schulze was not 

aware. It was changed in 2006, before Mr. Schulze purchased the property. It appeared to be 

agricultural because it had trees and no houses. He assumed it was AG.  

 

 

Staff recommendation was for denial to rezone 11.604 acres from R-1 to AG on Emory 

Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 3]. * 

 

Chairman Foster asked if there were any other questions from the commission. 

 

Member Jones stated that if the pond was built in R-1 status, it was illegal from the 

beginning. What would be the remediation? Would they have to fill in the pond? He asked 

the county attorney for clarification on how they are to respond. 

 

Attorney Nelson clarified that the code does not require a property to be in conformity with 

the zoning at the time the rezoning application is filed. If the board of commissioners were 

to grant the rezoning, the pond would be in compliance with the zoning designation. If it 

was not, it would be no different than someone starting a restaurant at their home. They 

would be referred to state court where code violations are handled. However, this case is 

different. He was not sure of what the remediation would be. It would be handled through 

the landowner and judicial system. Though there are issues with the current use of the 

property, it should not serve as a deterrent alone. If the board of commissioners do not 

approve the rezoning, it would be out of the P&Z boards hands. It would move to a code 

enforcement issue. 

 

Chairman Foster stated that it seemed to be a group of unfortunate circumstances that 

happened initially in regard to the pond. If in fact the pond has been brought into 

compliance, then the issue for the neighbors would be to try to get the issues they have 

mitigated. It appeared that Mr. Schulze has managed the pond. If the county, Army Corps of 

Engineers, and Georgia EPD have signed off on it then it is not an issue of the board. It is 

unfortunate and he feels for the neighbors, but he had not heard how the rezoning could have 

an adverse effect. The recommendations indicated that there could be but, he did not see 

anything that would indicate to him that there would have an adverse effect. He feels that if 

someone wants to do something with their property, it should be their prerogative as long as 

it could be shown that it would not have a negative effect on the neighbors or public safety.  

 

Chairman Foster asked for a motion for items 7,8, and 9. 

 

Motion: Member Jones made a motion to approve the request by Adam Schulze to rezone 

11.604 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 001, District 

4]. 

10



 

 

Second: Member Mitchell 

Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Jones, Member Mitchell, Chairman Foster 

Abstain: Vice Chairman Hill 

 

The request was approved by a vote of 4 and 1 Abstain.   

 

8. Request by Adam Schulze to rezone 11.030 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to 

AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 4]. * Attorney Matt Roessing represented this 

request. 

 

Staff recommendation was for denial to rezone 11.030 acres from R-1 to AG on Emory 

Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 4]. * 

 

Motion: Member Jones made a motion to approve the request by Adam Schulze to rezone 

11.030 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 002, District 

4]. 

Second: Member Mitchell 

Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Jones, Member Mitchell, Chairman Foster 

Abstain: Vice Chairman Hill 

The request was approved by a vote of 4 and 1 Abstain.   

 

9. Request by Adam Schulze to rezone 15.696 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to 

AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 4]. * Attorney Matt Roessing represented this 

request. 

 

Staff recommendation was for denial to rezone 15.696 acres from R-1 to AG on Emory 

Drive [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 4]. * 

 

Motion: Member Jones made a motion to approve the request by Adam Schulze to rezone 

15.696 acres on Emory Drive SE from R-1 to AG. [Map 111, Parcel 001045 003, District 

4]. 

Second: Member Mitchell 

Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Jones, Member Mitchell, Chairman Foster 

Abstain: Vice Chairman Hill 

 

The request was approved by a vote of 4 and 1 Abstain.   

 

New Business 
None 

Adjournment 

Motion: Member Mitchell made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Second: Member Farley 

Voting Yea: Vice Chairman Hill, Member Farley, Member Jones, Member Mitchell, 

Chairman Foster 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 8:13 pm 

 
Attest: 

 

 

11



 

 

_____________________________   ________________________________ 

Courtney Andrews     Alan Foster 

Assistant Director     Chairman 

12



File Attachments for Item:

5. Request by Roger Reaves to rezone 13.51 acres on Edward Reaves Road from AG to R-1. [Map 061, 

Part of Parcel 023, District 2].*

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



     PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommendations 

Thursday, June 02, 2022, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/2/2022 

 

Requests 
5. Request by Roger Reaves to rezone 13.51 acres on Edward Reaves Road from AG to R-1. [Map 061, Part of Parcel 023, District 2]. 

*  The parent parcel is currently owned by Roger Reaves, Alvin Edwards, Eldred Bailey, and Ted Yarbrough, and they are seeking to 

subdivide the property amongst the four entities. Two owners would like to rezone their portion of land to R-1 for residential use, and the other 

will remain in agriculture. If approved, one of the property owners would have 4.65 acres and single ownership of the four existing 

manufactured homes. He would then establish four residential single-family parcels consisting of one plus acre each. If approved, one of the 

property owners would gain single ownership of 8.86 acres and will establish two residential single-family parcels. The remaining 20.98 acres 

will stay zoned AG and subdivided into a 7.86-acre, 5.21-acre, and 7.87-acre AG tract. The Future Land Use Concept Plan shows this property 

as agriculture/forestry, which allows for residential use as stated in Sec. 66-72. - Uses allowed of the AG zoning district. However, the 

minimum 5-acre lot size requirement in agriculture prohibits the applicant's desired lot sizes. Furthermore, there are multiple R-2 residential 

lots nearby with similar uses. The proposed use is consistent with the allowed uses, as listed in section Sec. 66-81. - Uses allowed of the R-1 

zoning district. Therefore, this rezoning will not adversely impact the use of public facilities or services, nor will it adversely affect the 

existing use value or useability of adjacent or nearby properties. 

33

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_SIMIREDI_S66-84USAL
https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_SIMIREDI_S66-84USAL


Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 13.51 acres on Edwards Reaves Road from AG to R-1 [Map 061, Part of Parcel 023, 

District 2].  

34



 New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of 

campaign contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or 

more to an elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 21, 2022, at 6:30 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 

117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners' hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and 

meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions 

regarding the accessibility of the meeting, or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the 

meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

35



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by Jeremy Crosby, agent for William B. Jones to rezone 0.94 acres at 114 Briarpatch Road 

from R-2 to C-1. [Map 096B, Part of Parcel 063, District 1].*

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



T R A F F I C  I M P A C T S T U D Y

F O R

F I S H  T A L E M A R I N A BO A T S T O R A G E B U I L D I N G 3 

O N S R  44  ( G R E E N S B O R O R O A D  ) ,  

P U T N A M  C O U N T Y , G E O R G I A

Prepared for: 

JPC Design and Construction LLC 
PO Box 710 
Jackson, GA 30233 

Prepared By: 

April 26, 2022 
A & R Project # 22-061 

A&R Engineering Inc. 
2160 Kingston Court, Suite O 

Marietta, GA 30067 

Tel: (770) 690-9255 Fax: (770) 690-9210 

www.areng.com 

49



T A B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S

I t e m  P a g e
1.0 Introduction ...........................................................................................................................1 

2.0 Existing Facilities / Conditions .................................................................................................4 

2.1 Roadway Facilities ......................................................................................................................... 4 

2.1.1 SR 44 (Greensboro Road) .......................................................................................................... 4 

2.1.2 Briarpatch Road ........................................................................................................................ 4 

3.0 Study Methodology ................................................................................................................5 

3.1 Unsignalized Intersections ............................................................................................................ 5 

3.2 Signalized Intersections ................................................................................................................ 5 

4.0 Existing 2022 Traffic Analysis ...................................................................................................7 

4.1 Existing Traffic Volumes ................................................................................................................ 7 

4.2 Existing Traffic Operations ............................................................................................................ 9 

5.0 Proposed Development ......................................................................................................... 11 

5.1 Trip Generation ........................................................................................................................... 13 

5.2 Trip Distribution .......................................................................................................................... 13 

6.0 Future 2024 Traffic Analysis .................................................................................................. 15 

6.1 Future “No-Build” Conditions ..................................................................................................... 15 

6.1.1 Annual Traffic Growth ............................................................................................................. 15 

6.2 Future “Build” Conditions ........................................................................................................... 15 

6.3 Future Traffic Operations ............................................................................................................ 18 

7.0 Conclusions and Recommendations....................................................................................... 20 

7.1 Recommendation for Site Access Configuration ........................................................................ 20 

Appendix 

50



L I S T  O F  T A B L E S

I t e m  P a g e

Table 1 – Level-of-service Criteria for Unsignalized Intersections ................................................................ 5 

Table 2 – Level-of-service Criteria for Signalized Intersections .................................................................... 6 

Table 3 – Existing Intersection Operations ................................................................................................... 9 

Table 4 – Trip Generation ........................................................................................................................... 13 

Table 7 – Future Intersection Operations ................................................................................................... 18 

L I S T  O F  F I G U R E S

I t e m  P a g e

Figure 1 – Location Map................................................................................................................................ 3 

Figure 2 – Existing Weekday Peak Hour Volumes ......................................................................................... 8 

Figure 3 – Existing Traffic Control and Lane Geometry .............................................................................. 10 

Figure 4 – Site Plan ...................................................................................................................................... 12 

Figure 5 – Outer Leg Trip Distribution and Site Generated Peak Hour Volumes ........................................ 14 

Figure 6 – Future (No-Build) Peak Hour Volumes ....................................................................................... 16 

Figure 7 – Future (Build) Peak Hour Volumes ............................................................................................. 17 

Figure 8 – Future Traffic Control and Lane Geometry ................................................................................ 19 

51



A&R Engineering Inc. 

1 

1 . 0  I N T R O D U C T I O N

The purpose of this study is to determine the traffic impact from the proposed boat storage facility 

located to the north of the intersection of SR 44 (Greensboro Road) at Briarpatch Road in Putnam 

County, Georgia. The traffic analysis evaluates the current operations and future conditions with the 

traffic generated by the development. The existing development consists of 34,212 square feet of boat 

storage facility and the proposed development will consist of 14,550 square feet of boat storage facility. 

The development will access existing roadway at the following locations: 

• Site Driveway 1 (Storage Driveway): Full-access driveway on Briarpatch Road

• Site Driveway 2 (Northern Driveway): Full-access driveway on SR 44 (Greensboro Road)

The AM and PM peak hours have been analyzed in this study. This study includes the evaluation of 

traffic operations at the intersections of: 

• Briarpatch Road at existing Site Driveway 1 (Storage Driveway)

• SR 44 (Greensboro Road) at existing Site Driveway 2 (Northern Driveway)

• SR 44 (Greensboro Road) at Briarpatch Road

52



 

 

A&R Engineering Inc. 

2 

Recommendations to improve traffic operations have been identified as appropriate and are discussed 

in detail in the following sections of the report. The location of the development and the surrounding 

roadway network is shown in Figure 1. 

53



Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

Brer Bear Rd

Briarpatch Rd

Brer Fox Rd

SITE

3

LOCATION MAP
FIGURE 1

A&R Engineering Inc.

Study Intersection

1

2

3

54

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH



 

 

A&R Engineering Inc. 

4 

2 . 0  E X I S T I N G  F A C I L I T I E S  /  C O N D I T I O N S  

2.1 Roadway Facilities  
The following is a brief description of each of the roadway facilities located in proximity to the site: 

2.1.1 SR 44 (Greensboro Road) 

SR 44 (Greensboro Road) is a north-south, two-lane undivided roadway with a posted speed limit of 45 

mph in the vicinity of the site. Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) traffic counts (Station ID’s 

237-0145 and 237-0143, between Harmony Road and SR 16) indicate that the daily traffic volume on SR 

44 (Greensboro Road) in 2019 was 5,910 vehicles per day, northeast of Loch Way and 5,940 vehicles per 

day, southwest of North Wesley Chapel Road. GDOT classifies SR 44 (Greensboro Road) as a Rural Minor 

Arterial roadway. 

2.1.2 Briarpatch Road 

Briarpatch Road is an east-west, two-lane, undivided roadway with a posted speed limit of 25 mph in 

the vicinity of the site.  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

55



A&R Engineering Inc. 

5 

3 . 0  S T U D Y  M E T H O D O L O G Y

In this study, the methodology used for evaluating traffic operations at each of the subject intersections 

is based on the criteria set forth in the Transportation Research Board’s Highway Capacity Manual, 6th 

edition (HCM 6). Synchro software, which utilizes the HCM methodology, was used for the analysis. The 

following is a description of the methodology employed for the analysis of unsignalized and signalized 

intersections. 

3.1 Unsignalized Intersections 
For unsignalized intersections controlled by a stop sign on minor streets, the level-of-service (LOS) for 

motor vehicles with controlled movements is determined by the computed control delay according to 

the thresholds stated in Table 1 below.  LOS is determined for each minor street movement (or shared 

movement), as well as major street left turns.  LOS is not defined for the intersection as a whole or for 

major street approaches.  The LOS of any controlled movement which experiences a volume to capacity 

ratio greater than 1 is designated as “F” regardless of the control delay. 

Control delay for unsignalized intersections includes initial deceleration delay, queue move-up time, 

stopped delay, and final acceleration delay. Several factors affect the control delay for unsignalized 

intersections, such as the availability and distribution of gaps in the conflicting traffic stream, critical 

gaps, and follow-up time for a vehicle in the queue. 

Level-of-service is assigned a letter designation from “A” through “F”. Level-of-service “A” indicates 

excellent operations with little delay to motorists, while level-of-service “F” exists when there are 

insufficient gaps of acceptable size to allow vehicles on the side street to cross the main road without 

experiencing long total delays.  

Table 1 – Level-of-service Criteria for Unsignalized Intersections 

Control Delay (sec/vehicle) 
LOS by Volume-to-Capacity Ratio* 

v/c ≤ 1.0 v/c ≥ 1.0 

≤ 10 A F 

> 10 and ≤ 15 B F 

> 15 and ≤ 25 C F 

> 25 and ≤ 35 D F 

> 35 and ≤ 50 E F 

> 50 F F 
*The LOS criteria apply to each lane on a given approach and to each approach on the minor street. LOS is not calculated for 
major-street approaches or for the intersection.

Source: Highway Capacity Manual, 6th edition, Exhibit 20-2 LOS Criteria: Motorized Vehicle Mode 

3.2 Signalized Intersections 
According to HCM procedures, LOS can be calculated for the entire intersection, each intersection 

approach, and each lane group. HCM uses control delay alone to characterize LOS for the entire 

intersection or an approach. Control delay per vehicle is composed of initial deceleration delay, queue 

56



A&R Engineering Inc. 

6 

move-up time, stopped delay, and final acceleration delay. Both control delay and volume-to-capacity 

ratio is used to characterize LOS for a lane group. A volume-to-capacity ratio of 1.0 or more for a lane 

group indicates failure from capacity perspective.  Therefore, such a lane group is assigned LOS F 

regardless of the amount of control delay.  

Table 2 below summarizes the LOS criteria from HCM for motorized vehicles at signalized intersection. 

Table 2 – Level-of-service Criteria for Signalized Intersections 

Control Delay (sec/vehicle)* 

LOS  for Lane Group by Volume-to-Capacity 
Ratio* 

v/c ≤ 1.0 v/c ≥ 1.0 

≤ 10 A F 

> 10 and ≤ 20 B F 

> 20 and ≤ 35 C F 

> 35 and ≤ 55 D F 

> 55 and ≤ 80 E F 

> 80 F F 
*For approach-based and intersection wide assessments, LOS is defined solely by control delay

Source: Highway Capacity Manual, 6th edition, Exhibit 19-8 LOS Criteria: Motorized Vehicle Mode 

LOS A is typically assigned when the volume-to-capacity (v/c) ratio is low and either progression is 
exceptionally favorable, or the cycle length is very short. LOS B is typically assigned when the v/c ratio is 
low and either progression is highly favorable, or the cycle length is short. However, more vehicles are 
stopped than with LOS A. LOS C is typically assigned when progression is favorable, or the cycle length is 
moderate. Individual cycle failures (one or more queued vehicles are not able to depart because of 
insufficient capacity during the cycle) may begin to appear at this level. Many vehicles still pass through 
the intersection without stopping, but the number of vehicles stopping is significant. LOS D is typically 
assigned when the v/c ratio is high and either progression is ineffective, or the cycle length is long. There 
are many vehicle-stops and individual cycle failures are noticeable. LOS E is typically assigned when the 
v/c ratio is high, progression is very poor, the cycle length is long, and individual cycle failures are 
frequent. LOS F is typically assigned when the v/c ratio is very high, progression is very poor, the cycle 
length is long, and most cycles fail to clear the queue. 

57



 

 

A&R Engineering Inc. 

7 

4 . 0  E X I S T I N G  2 0 2 2  T R A F F I C  A N A L Y S I S  

4.1 Existing Traffic Volumes 

Existing traffic counts were obtained at the following study intersections: 

 

• Briarpatch Road at existing Site Driveway 1 (Storage Driveway) 

• SR 44 (Greensboro Road) at existing Site Driveway 2 (Northern Driveway) 

• SR 44 (Greensboro Road) at Briarpatch Road 
 

Turning movement counts were collected on Tuesday, March 29, 2022. All turning movement counts 

were recorded during the AM and PM peak hours between 7:00am to 9:00am and 4:00pm to 6:00pm, 

respectively. The four consecutive 15-minute interval volumes that summed to produce the highest 

volume at the intersections were then determined. These volumes make up the peak hour traffic 

volumes for the intersections counted and are shown in Figure 2.  

 

 

 

58



Briarpatch Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

SITE

1

2

3

4

Briarpatch Rd

8

EXISTING WEEKDAY PEAK-HOUR VOLUMES

A&R Engineering Inc.

(AM) PM

FIGURE 2

(4) 3

(13) 13

(30
) 3

3

(21
6) 

37
7

(45
9) 

23
0(3)

 3

(7) 7
(11) 8

(3)
 8

(22
1) 

37
0

(44
5) 

22
7

(13
) 1

3

(0) 0(8) 6

(7) 10

(1) 0

(0)
 0

(1)
 2

(4) 2(0) 0

(2) 2
(1) 1

(0)
 0(2)

 1

59

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH



 

 

A&R Engineering Inc. 

9 

4.2 Existing Traffic Operations 

Existing 2022 traffic operations were analyzed at the study intersections in accordance with the HCM 

methodology. The results of the analyses are shown in Table 3. The existing traffic control and lane 

geometry for the intersections are shown in Figure 3. 

 

Table 3 – Existing Intersection Operations 

Intersection Traffic Control 
LOS (Delay) 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

1 
SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ Site Driveway 2 (Northern Driveway) 
-Eastbound Approach 
-Northbound Left 

Stop Controlled 
on Eastbound 

Approach 

 
B (14.4) 
A (7.8) 

 
B (13.6) 
A (8.3) 

2 
SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ Briarpatch Rd 
-Eastbound Approach 
-Northbound Left 

Stop Controlled 
on Eastbound 

Approach 

 
B (13.2) 
A (7.8) 

 
B (12.6) 
A (8.2) 

3 
Briarpatch Rd @ Site Driveway 1 (Storage Driveway) 
-Eastbound Left 
-Southbound Approach 

Stop Controlled 
on Southbound 

Approach 

 
A (7.2) 
A (8.6) 

 
A (0.0) 
A (8.6) 

 

The results of existing traffic operations analysis indicate that all the unsignalized intersections are 

operating at level-of-service “B” or better in both the AM and PM peak hours.  

 

 

 

60



Briarpatch Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

SITE

1

2

3

Briarpatch Rd

10

EXISTING TRAFFIC CONTROL AND LANE GEOMETRY

A&R Engineering Inc.
FIGURE 3

Existing Lane Geometry

Existing Signed Approach

STOPEx
LEGEND

STOP

Ex

STOP

Ex

STO
P

Ex

61

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH



A&R Engineering Inc. 

11 

5 . 0  P R O P O S E D  D E V E L O P M E N T

The existing development consists of 34,212 square feet of boat storage facility and the proposed 

development will consist of 14,550 square feet of boat storage facility. 

The development will access existing roadway at the following locations: 

• Site Driveway 1 (Storage Driveway): Full-access driveway on Briarpatch Road

• Site Driveway 2 (Northern Driveway): Full-access driveway on SR 44 (Greensboro Road)

 A site plan is shown in Figure 4. 

62



30
.0

'

50
' L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

93.7'

BO
AT

 S
TO

R
AG

E 
BL

D
G

. #
3

14
,5

50
 S

F 
(1

50
' X

 9
7'

)

15
0.

0'

97.0'

10
8.

4'

52.0'

94
.9

'

10
.0

'

28.2'

23.5'

63
.3

'

65
.2

'

17
.5

'

1 
in

ch
 =

   
   

   
 ft

.
( I

N
 F

EE
T 

)

G
R

A
PH

IC
 S

C
A

LE
0

20
20

40

20

80
10

PR
O

JE
C

T 
N

O
:

R:\Projects\2150 - Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage - Putnam Co\2150-BASE.dwg, LANDSCAPE CONCEPT, Steven,  Feb 23, 2022 - 10:34:14am

FOR

TH
IS

 S
EA

L I
S 

VA
LID

 O
NL

Y 
IF

 S
IG

NE
D 

AN
D 

DA
TE

D
BY

 T
HE

 LI
CE

NS
ED

 P
RO

FE
SS

IO
NA

L S
HO

W
N.

318 Corporate Pkwy, Ste. 301
Macon, GA  31210

(478) 621-7500 office
steven@rowland-engineering.com

www.rowland-engineering.com

ROWLAND

02
-2

3-
20

22

1 O
F 

1

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

AL
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

21
50JPC DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION, LLC

PUTNAM COUNTY, GA
114 BRIARPATCH RD., EATONTON, GA 31024 
FISH TALE MARINA BOAT STORAGE BLDG. #3

63



 

 

A&R Engineering Inc. 

13 

5.1 Trip Generation 

Trip generation estimates for the project were based on ratio of the existing facility square footage to 

the new facilities to account for the additional storage.  The calculated total trip generation for the 

proposed development is shown in Table 4. 

 

Table 4 – Trip Generation 

Land Use Size 
AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total 

Existing Facility 34,212 sf 6 3 9 3 3 6 

New Facility 14,550 sf 3 1 4 1 1 2 

Total Facility 48,762 sf 9 4 13 4 4 8 

5.2 Trip Distribution 

The trip distribution describes how traffic arrives and departs from the site. An overall trip distribution 

was developed for the site based on a review of the existing travel patterns in the area and the locations 

of major roadways and highways that will serve the development. The site-generated peak hour traffic 

volumes, shown in Table 4, were assigned to the study area intersections based on this distribution. The 

outer-leg distribution and AM and PM peak hour new traffic generated by the site are shown in Figure 5. 

64



Briarpatch Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

SITE

1

2

3

Briarpatch Rd

Site Drwy 2

Site Drwy 1

14
A&R Engineering Inc.

TRIP DISTRIBUTION AND SITE-GENERATED

WEEKDAY PEAK HOUR VOLUMES

(AM) PM

FIGURE 5

(2) 1

(2)
 1

(2)
 1

(2)
 1

(6)
 3

(3) 3

65

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
63%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
35%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%



 

 

A&R Engineering Inc. 

15 

6 . 0  F U T U R E  2 0 2 4  T R A F F I C  A N A L Y S I S  
 

The future 2024 traffic operations are analyzed for the “Build” and “No-Build” conditions.  

6.1 Future “No-Build” Conditions 

The “No-Build” (or background) conditions provide an assessment of how traffic will operate in the 

study horizon year without the study site being developed as proposed, with projected increases in 

through traffic volumes due to normal annual growth. The Future “No-Build” volumes consist of the 

existing traffic volumes (Figure 2) plus increase in annual growth of through traffic. 

6.1.1 Annual Traffic Growth 

In order to evaluate future traffic operations in this area, a projection of normal traffic growth was 

applied to the existing volumes. The Georgia Department of Transportation recorded average daily 

traffic volumes at several locations in the vicinity of the site. Reviewing the growth over the last three 

years revealed growth of approximately 1% in the area was used in the analysis. This growth factor was 

applied to the existing traffic volumes between collector and arterial roadways in order to estimate the 

future year traffic volumes prior to the addition of site-generated traffic. The resulting Future “No-Build” 

volumes on the roadway are shown in Figure 6. 

6.2 Future “Build” Conditions 

The “Build” or development conditions include the estimated background traffic from the “No-Build” 

conditions plus the added traffic from the proposed development. In order to evaluate future traffic 

operations in this area, the additional traffic volumes from the site (Figure 5) were added to base traffic 

volumes (Figure 6) to calculate the future traffic volumes after the construction of the development. 

These total future “Build” traffic volumes are shown in Figure 7. 

 

 

66



Briarpatch Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

SITE

1

2

3

Briarpatch Rd

16
A&R Engineering Inc.

FUTURE (NO-BUILD) WEEKDAY PEAK HOUR VOLUMES

(AM) PM

FIGURE 6

(4) 3

(13) 13

(31
) 3

4

(22
0) 

38
5

(46
8) 

23
5(3)

 3

(7) 7

(11) 8

(3)
 8

(22
5) 

37
7

(45
4) 

23
2

(13
) 1

3

(0) 0(8) 6

(7) 10

(1) 0

(0)
 0

(1)
 2

67

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH



Briarpatch Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

SITE

1

2

3

Briarpatch Rd

Site Drwy 2

Site Drwy 1

17

FUTURE (BUILD) WEEKDAY PEAK HOUR VOLUMES

A&R Engineering Inc.

(AM) PM

FIGURE 7

(5) 4

(16) 16

(37
) 3

7

(22
0) 

38
5

(46
8) 

23
5(5)

 4

(8) 8

(11) 8

(3)
 8

(22
6) 

37
8

(45
6) 

23
3

(15
) 1

4

(2) 1(8) 6

(7) 10
(1) 0

(0)
 0

(2)
 3

68

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH



A&R Engineering Inc. 

18 

6.3 Future Traffic Operations 

The future “No-Build” and “Build” traffic operations were analyzed using the volumes in Figure 6 and 

Figure 7, respectively. The results of the future traffic operations analysis are shown below in Table 7. 

Recommendations on traffic control and lane geometry are shown graphically in Figure 8. 

Table 7 – Future Intersection Operations 

Intersection 

Future Condition: LOS (Delay) 

NO-BUILD BUILD 

AM Peak PM Peak AM Peak PM Peak 

1 
SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ Site Driveway 2 (Northern Driveway) 
-Eastbound Approach
-Northbound Left

B (14.6) 
A (7.8) 

B (13.8) 
A (8.3) 

B (14.9) 
A (7.9) 

B (13.9) 
A (8.3) 

2 
SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ Briarpatch Road 
-Eastbound Approach
-Northbound Left

B (13.3) 
A (7.8) 

B (12.7) 
A (8.2) 

B (13.2) 
A (7.8) 

B (12.7) 
A (8.2) 

3 
Briarpatch Rd @ Site Driveway 1 (Storage Driveway) 
-Eastbound Left
-Southbound Approach

A (7.2) 
A (8.6) 

A (0.0) 
A (8.6) 

A (7.2) 
A (8.6) 

A (0.0) 
A (8.7) 

* Delay exceeds 300 seconds

After addition of site generated volumes to the “No-Build” condition, the “Build” condition traffic 

operations analysis indicates that all the unsignalized study intersections will operate at level of service 

“B” or better in both the AM and PM peak hours. 

69



Briarpatch Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

Gree
nsb

oro
 Rd

SITE

1

2

3

Briarpatch Rd

Site Drwy 2

Site Drwy 1

19

FUTURE TRAFFIC CONTROL AND LANE GEOMETRY
FIGURE 8

A&R Engineering Inc.

Proposed Signed Approach

Existing Lane Geometry

Existing Signed Approach

Ex
LEGEND

Proposed Lane Geometry

STOPSTOP

STOP

Ex

STOP

Ex

STO
P

Ex

70

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH



A&R Engineering Inc. 

20 

7 . 0  C O N C L U S I O N S  A N D  R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S

Traffic impacts were evaluated for the boat storage facility located in the northwest of the intersection 

of SR 44 (Greensboro Road) at Briarpatch Road in Putnam County, Georgia. The existing development 

consists of 34,212 square feet of boat storage facility and the proposed development will consist of 

14,550 square feet of boat storage facility development. 

Existing and future operations after completion of the project were analyzed at the intersections of: 

• Briarpatch Road at existing Site Driveway 1 (Storage Driveway)

• SR 44 (Greensboro Road) at existing Site Driveway 2 (Northern Driveway)

• SR 44 (Greensboro Road) at Briarpatch Road

The analysis included the evaluation of future traffic operations for “No-Build” and “Build” conditions, 

the differences between “No-Build” and “Build” accounts for increase in traffic due to the proposed 

development. The results of future traffic operations analysis indicate that all the study intersections will 

operate at level of service “B” or better in both the AM and PM peak hours. Based on the analysis, the 

proposed development will have minimal impact on traffic operations in the study network. 

7.1 Recommendation for Site Access Configuration 

The following improvements are recommended at the proposed site driveway intersections. 

• Site Driveway 1 (Storage Driveway): Existing full access driveway on Briarpatch Road

o One entering and one exiting lane.

o Stop-sign controlled on the driveway approach with Briarpatch Road remaining free

flow.

o Confirm adequate sight distance per AASHTO standards

71



Appendix
Existing Intersection Traffic Counts ................................................................................................................  

Linear Regression of Daily Traffic ....................................................................................................................  

Existing Intersection Analysis ..........................................................................................................................  

Future “No-Build” Intersection Analysis .........................................................................................................  

Future “Build” Intersection Analysis ...............................................................................................................  

Traffic Volume Worksheets ............................................................................................................................  

72



E X I S T I N G  I N T E R S E C T I O N  T R A F F I C  C O U N T S

73



File Name : 20220139
Site Code : 20220139
Start Date : 3/29/2022
Page No : 1

TMC DATA
Briarpatch Rd @ Storage Drwy
7-9 am | 4-6 pm

Groups Printed- Cars,Buses & Trucks

Northbound
Storage Drwy
Southbound

Briarpatch Rd
Eastbound

Briarpatch Rd
Westbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 2
*** BREAK ***

07:30 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 1 0 1 3
07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 3 0 3 5

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 5 0 5 0 5 10

08:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 2
08:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 4
08:30 AM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 6
08:45 AM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 2 1 3 5

Total 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 1 6 0 7 0 7 1 8 17

*** BREAK ***

04:00 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 4 0 4 0 1 0 1 6
04:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 0 3 0 3 7
04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 1 0 1 3
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 2

Total 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 10 0 10 0 6 0 6 18

05:00 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1
05:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 5
05:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 3 0 1 0 1 4
05:45 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 1 2 3

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 6 0 6 0 5 1 6 13

Grand Total 0 0 0 0 4 0 1 5 1 27 0 28 0 23 2 25 58
Apprch % 0 0 0  80 0 20  3.6 96.4 0  0 92 8   

Total % 0 0 0 0 6.9 0 1.7 8.6 1.7 46.6 0 48.3 0 39.7 3.4 43.1

A & R Engineering, Inc.

2160 Kingston Court, Suite 'O',
Marietta, GA 30067

74



File Name : 20220139
Site Code : 20220139
Start Date : 3/29/2022
Page No : 2

TMC DATA
Briarpatch Rd @ Storage Drwy
7-9 am | 4-6 pm

Northbound
Storage Drwy
Southbound

Briarpatch Rd
Eastbound

Briarpatch Rd
Westbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:45 AM

07:45 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 3 0 3 5
08:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 2
08:15 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 4
08:30 AM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 6

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 7 0 8 0 8 0 8 17
% App. Total 0 0 0  100 0 0  12.5 87.5 0  0 100 0   

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .250 .000 .000 .250 .250 .583 .000 .667 .000 .667 .000 .667 .708

 Storage Drwy 

 B
ri
a
rp

a
tc

h
 R

d
  B

ria
rp

a
tch

 R
d
 

  

Right
0 

Thru
0 

Left
1 

InOut Total
1 1 2 

R
ig

h
t0
 

T
h
ru8

 
L
e
ft0

 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

8
 

8
 

1
6
 

Left
0 

Thru
0 

Right
0 

Out TotalIn
0 0 0 

L
e
ft
1
 

T
h
ru

7
 

R
ig

h
t0
 

T
o
ta

l
O

u
t

In
8
 

8
 

1
6
 

Peak Hour Begins at 07:45 AM
 
Cars,Buses & Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North

A & R Engineering, Inc.

2160 Kingston Court, Suite 'O',
Marietta, GA 30067

75



File Name : 20220139
Site Code : 20220139
Start Date : 3/29/2022
Page No : 3

TMC DATA
Briarpatch Rd @ Storage Drwy
7-9 am | 4-6 pm

Northbound
Storage Drwy
Southbound

Briarpatch Rd
Eastbound

Briarpatch Rd
Westbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:00 PM

04:00 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 4 0 4 0 1 0 1 6
04:15 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 4 0 3 0 3 7
04:30 PM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 1 0 1 3
04:45 PM 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 2

Total Volume 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 10 0 10 0 6 0 6 18
% App. Total 0 0 0  100 0 0  0 100 0  0 100 0   

PHF .000 .000 .000 .000 .500 .000 .000 .500 .000 .625 .000 .625 .000 .500 .000 .500 .643

 Storage Drwy 

 B
ri
a
rp

a
tc

h
 R

d
  B

ria
rp

a
tch

 R
d
 

  

Right
0 

Thru
0 

Left
2 

InOut Total
0 2 2 

R
ig

h
t0
 

T
h
ru6

 
L
e
ft0

 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

1
2
 

6
 

1
8
 

Left
0 

Thru
0 

Right
0 

Out TotalIn
0 0 0 

L
e
ft

0
 

T
h
ru1

0
 

R
ig

h
t0
 

T
o
ta

l
O

u
t

In
6
 

1
0
 

1
6
 

Peak Hour Begins at 04:00 PM
 
Cars,Buses & Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North

A & R Engineering, Inc.

2160 Kingston Court, Suite 'O',
Marietta, GA 30067

76



File Name : 20220140
Site Code : 20220140
Start Date : 3/29/2022
Page No : 1

TMC DATA
SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ Briarpatch Rd
7-9 am | 4-6 pm

Groups Printed- Cars,Buses & Trucks
SR 44 (Greensboro Rd)

Northbound
SR 44 (Greensboro Rd)

Southbound
Briarpatch Rd

Eastbound Westbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 5 57 0 62 0 46 1 47 2 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 114
07:15 AM 2 68 0 70 0 77 0 77 2 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 152
07:30 AM 2 101 0 103 0 78 1 79 2 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 187
07:45 AM 6 123 0 129 0 32 1 33 3 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 166

Total 15 349 0 364 0 233 3 236 9 0 10 19 0 0 0 0 619

08:00 AM 3 153 0 156 0 34 1 35 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 195
08:15 AM 1 77 0 78 0 39 2 41 2 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 124
08:30 AM 3 84 0 87 0 43 1 44 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 135
08:45 AM 2 70 0 72 0 48 3 51 2 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 126

Total 9 384 0 393 0 164 7 171 12 0 4 16 0 0 0 0 580

*** BREAK ***

04:00 PM 2 58 0 60 0 76 1 77 2 0 2 4 0 0 0 0 141
04:15 PM 3 52 0 55 0 84 3 87 2 0 2 4 0 0 0 0 146
04:30 PM 2 54 0 56 0 86 1 87 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 145
04:45 PM 1 57 0 58 0 74 2 76 3 0 2 5 0 0 0 0 139

Total 8 221 0 229 0 320 7 327 8 0 7 15 0 0 0 0 571

05:00 PM 3 54 0 57 0 109 3 112 2 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 174
05:15 PM 5 61 0 66 0 103 2 105 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 173
05:30 PM 4 55 0 59 0 84 1 85 2 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 147
05:45 PM 3 54 0 57 0 71 2 73 2 0 2 4 0 0 0 0 134

Total 15 224 0 239 0 367 8 375 7 0 7 14 0 0 0 0 628

Grand Total 47 1178 0 1225 0 1084 25 1109 36 0 28 64 0 0 0 0 2398
Apprch % 3.8 96.2 0  0 97.7 2.3  56.2 0 43.8  0 0 0   

Total % 2 49.1 0 51.1 0 45.2 1 46.2 1.5 0 1.2 2.7 0 0 0 0

A & R Engineering, Inc.

2160 Kingston Court, Suite 'O',
Marietta, GA 30067

77



File Name : 20220140
Site Code : 20220140
Start Date : 3/29/2022
Page No : 2

TMC DATA
SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ Briarpatch Rd
7-9 am | 4-6 pm

SR 44 (Greensboro Rd)
Northbound

SR 44 (Greensboro Rd)
Southbound

Briarpatch Rd
Eastbound Westbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:15 AM

07:15 AM 2 68 0 70 0 77 0 77 2 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 152
07:30 AM 2 101 0 103 0 78 1 79 2 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 187
07:45 AM 6 123 0 129 0 32 1 33 3 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 166
08:00 AM 3 153 0 156 0 34 1 35 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 195

Total Volume 13 445 0 458 0 221 3 224 11 0 7 18 0 0 0 0 700
% App. Total 2.8 97.2 0  0 98.7 1.3  61.1 0 38.9  0 0 0   

PHF .542 .727 .000 .734 .000 .708 .750 .709 .688 .000 .583 .900 .000 .000 .000 .000 .897

 SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) 

 B
ri
a
rp

a
tc

h
 R

d
 

  

 SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) 

Right
3 

Thru
221 

Left
0 

InOut Total
456 224 680 

R
ig

h
t0
 

T
h
ru0

 
L
e
ft0

 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

0
 

0
 

0
 

Left
13 

Thru
445 

Right
0 

Out TotalIn
228 458 686 

L
e
ft1
1
 

T
h
ru

0
 

R
ig

h
t7
 

T
o
ta

l
O

u
t

In
1
6
 

1
8
 

3
4
 

Peak Hour Begins at 07:15 AM
 
Cars,Buses & Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North

A & R Engineering, Inc.

2160 Kingston Court, Suite 'O',
Marietta, GA 30067

78



File Name : 20220140
Site Code : 20220140
Start Date : 3/29/2022
Page No : 3

TMC DATA
SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ Briarpatch Rd
7-9 am | 4-6 pm

SR 44 (Greensboro Rd)
Northbound

SR 44 (Greensboro Rd)
Southbound

Briarpatch Rd
Eastbound Westbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:45 PM

04:45 PM 1 57 0 58 0 74 2 76 3 0 2 5 0 0 0 0 139
05:00 PM 3 54 0 57 0 109 3 112 2 0 3 5 0 0 0 0 174
05:15 PM 5 61 0 66 0 103 2 105 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 173
05:30 PM 4 55 0 59 0 84 1 85 2 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 147

Total Volume 13 227 0 240 0 370 8 378 8 0 7 15 0 0 0 0 633
% App. Total 5.4 94.6 0  0 97.9 2.1  53.3 0 46.7  0 0 0   

PHF .650 .930 .000 .909 .000 .849 .667 .844 .667 .000 .583 .750 .000 .000 .000 .000 .909

 SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) 

 B
ri
a
rp

a
tc

h
 R

d
 

  

 SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) 

Right
8 

Thru
370 

Left
0 

InOut Total
235 378 613 

R
ig

h
t0
 

T
h
ru0

 
L
e
ft0

 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

0
 

0
 

0
 

Left
13 

Thru
227 

Right
0 

Out TotalIn
377 240 617 

L
e
ft

8
 

T
h
ru

0
 

R
ig

h
t7
 

T
o
ta

l
O

u
t

In
2
1
 

1
5
 

3
6
 

Peak Hour Begins at 04:45 PM
 
Cars,Buses & Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North

A & R Engineering, Inc.

2160 Kingston Court, Suite 'O',
Marietta, GA 30067

79



File Name : 20220143
Site Code : 20220143
Start Date : 3/29/2022
Page No : 1

TMC DATA
SR 44 Greensboro Rd @ Northern Drwy
7-9 am | 4-6 pm

Groups Printed- Cars,Bueses & Trucks
SR 44 Greensboro Rd

Northbound
SR 44 Greensboro Rd

Southbound
Northern Drwy

Eastbound Westbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

07:00 AM 2 61 0 63 0 44 8 52 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 117
07:15 AM 0 64 0 64 0 66 7 73 1 0 2 3 0 0 0 0 140
07:30 AM 0 102 0 102 0 81 10 91 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 196
07:45 AM 1 128 0 129 0 34 8 42 6 0 1 7 0 0 0 0 178

Total 3 355 0 358 0 225 33 258 12 0 3 15 0 0 0 0 631

08:00 AM 2 165 0 167 0 35 5 40 3 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 211
08:15 AM 5 78 0 83 0 39 2 41 6 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 130
08:30 AM 0 89 0 89 0 49 2 51 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 143
08:45 AM 0 71 0 71 0 50 4 54 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 127

Total 7 403 0 410 0 173 13 186 13 0 2 15 0 0 0 0 611

*** BREAK ***

04:00 PM 0 60 0 60 0 77 11 88 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 150
04:15 PM 1 53 0 54 0 86 10 96 2 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 153
04:30 PM 1 54 0 55 0 87 9 96 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 156
04:45 PM 1 59 0 60 0 75 6 81 3 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 145

Total 3 226 0 229 0 325 36 361 12 0 2 14 0 0 0 0 604

05:00 PM 1 55 0 56 0 111 9 120 4 0 1 5 0 0 0 0 181
05:15 PM 0 62 0 62 0 104 9 113 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 177
05:30 PM 0 57 0 57 0 82 4 86 1 0 3 4 0 0 0 0 147
05:45 PM 0 56 0 56 0 71 5 76 2 0 2 4 0 0 0 0 136

Total 1 230 0 231 0 368 27 395 8 0 7 15 0 0 0 0 641

Grand Total 14 1214 0 1228 0 1091 109 1200 45 0 14 59 0 0 0 0 2487
Apprch % 1.1 98.9 0  0 90.9 9.1  76.3 0 23.7  0 0 0   

Total % 0.6 48.8 0 49.4 0 43.9 4.4 48.3 1.8 0 0.6 2.4 0 0 0 0

A & R Engineering, Inc.

2160 Kingston Court, Suite 'O',
Marietta, GA 30067

80



File Name : 20220143
Site Code : 20220143
Start Date : 3/29/2022
Page No : 2

TMC DATA
SR 44 Greensboro Rd @ Northern Drwy
7-9 am | 4-6 pm

SR 44 Greensboro Rd
Northbound

SR 44 Greensboro Rd
Southbound

Northern Drwy
Eastbound Westbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 07:00 AM to 08:45 AM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 07:15 AM

07:15 AM 0 64 0 64 0 66 7 73 1 0 2 3 0 0 0 0 140
07:30 AM 0 102 0 102 0 81 10 91 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 196
07:45 AM 1 128 0 129 0 34 8 42 6 0 1 7 0 0 0 0 178
08:00 AM 2 165 0 167 0 35 5 40 3 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 211

Total Volume 3 459 0 462 0 216 30 246 13 0 4 17 0 0 0 0 725
% App. Total 0.6 99.4 0  0 87.8 12.2  76.5 0 23.5  0 0 0   

PHF .375 .695 .000 .692 .000 .667 .750 .676 .542 .000 .500 .607 .000 .000 .000 .000 .859

 SR 44 Greensboro Rd 

 N
o
rt

h
e
rn

 D
rw

y 
  

 SR 44 Greensboro Rd 

Right
30 

Thru
216 

Left
0 

InOut Total
472 246 718 

R
ig

h
t0
 

T
h
ru0

 
L
e
ft0

 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

0
 

0
 

0
 

Left
3 

Thru
459 

Right
0 

Out TotalIn
220 462 682 

L
e
ft1
3
 

T
h
ru

0
 

R
ig

h
t4
 

T
o
ta

l
O

u
t

In
3
3
 

1
7
 

5
0
 

Peak Hour Begins at 07:15 AM
 
Cars,Bueses & Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North

A & R Engineering, Inc.

2160 Kingston Court, Suite 'O',
Marietta, GA 30067

81



File Name : 20220143
Site Code : 20220143
Start Date : 3/29/2022
Page No : 3

TMC DATA
SR 44 Greensboro Rd @ Northern Drwy
7-9 am | 4-6 pm

SR 44 Greensboro Rd
Northbound

SR 44 Greensboro Rd
Southbound

Northern Drwy
Eastbound Westbound

Start Time Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Left Thru Right App. Total Int. Total

Peak Hour Analysis From 04:00 PM to 05:45 PM - Peak 1 of 1
Peak Hour for Entire Intersection Begins at 04:30 PM

04:30 PM 1 54 0 55 0 87 9 96 5 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 156
04:45 PM 1 59 0 60 0 75 6 81 3 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 145
05:00 PM 1 55 0 56 0 111 9 120 4 0 1 5 0 0 0 0 181

05:15 PM 0 62 0 62 0 104 9 113 1 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 177
Total Volume 3 230 0 233 0 377 33 410 13 0 3 16 0 0 0 0 659

% App. Total 1.3 98.7 0  0 92 8  81.2 0 18.8  0 0 0   
PHF .750 .927 .000 .940 .000 .849 .917 .854 .650 .000 .750 .800 .000 .000 .000 .000 .910

 SR 44 Greensboro Rd 

 N
o
rt

h
e
rn

 D
rw

y 
  

 SR 44 Greensboro Rd 

Right
33 

Thru
377 

Left
0 

InOut Total
243 410 653 

R
ig

h
t0
 

T
h
ru0

 
L
e
ft0

 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

0
 

0
 

0
 

Left
3 

Thru
230 

Right
0 

Out TotalIn
380 233 613 

L
e
ft1
3
 

T
h
ru

0
 

R
ig

h
t3
 

T
o
ta

l
O

u
t

In
3
6
 

1
6
 

5
2
 

Peak Hour Begins at 04:30 PM
 
Cars,Bueses & Trucks

Peak Hour Data

North

A & R Engineering, Inc.

2160 Kingston Court, Suite 'O',
Marietta, GA 30067

82



L I N E A R  R E G R E S S I O N  O F  D A I L Y  T R A F F I C

83



E X I S T I N G  I N T E R S E C T I O N  A N A L Y S I S

84



HCM 6th TWSC 1a. Existing 2022 AM 
1: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.4

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 13 4 3 459 216 30
Future Vol, veh/h 13 4 3 459 216 30
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 86 86 86 86 86 86
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 15 5 3 534 251 35
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 809 269 286 0 - 0
          Stage 1 269 - - - - -
          Stage 2 540 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 350 770 1276 - - -
          Stage 1 776 - - - - -
          Stage 2 584 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 349 770 1276 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 349 - - - - -
          Stage 1 774 - - - - -
          Stage 2 584 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 14.4 0.1 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1276 - 401 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.003 - 0.049 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.8 0 14.4 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.2 - -

85



HCM 6th TWSC 1a. Existing 2022 AM 
2: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Briarpatch Rd 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 11 7 13 445 221 3
Future Vol, veh/h 11 7 13 445 221 3
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 12 8 14 494 246 3
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 770 248 249 0 - 0
          Stage 1 248 - - - - -
          Stage 2 522 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 369 791 1317 - - -
          Stage 1 793 - - - - -
          Stage 2 595 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 363 791 1317 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 363 - - - - -
          Stage 1 781 - - - - -
          Stage 2 595 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 13.2 0.2 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1317 - 460 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.011 - 0.043 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.8 0 13.2 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

86



HCM 6th TWSC 1a. Existing 2022 AM 
3: Briarpatch Rd & Site Drwy 2 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 3

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 7 8 0 1 0
Future Vol, veh/h 1 7 8 0 1 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 71 71 71 71 71 71
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 10 11 0 1 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 11 0 - 0 23 11
          Stage 1 - - - - 11 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 12 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1608 - - - 993 1070
          Stage 1 - - - - 1012 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1011 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1608 - - - 992 1070
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 992 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1011 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1011 -
 

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.9 0 8.6
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 1608 - - - 992
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.001 - - - 0.001
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.2 0 - - 8.6
HCM Lane LOS A A - - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - - 0

87



HCM 6th TWSC 1a. Existing 2022 AM 
4: Site Drwy 2 & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.9

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 2 0 4 2 0
Future Vol, veh/h 1 2 0 4 2 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 2 0 4 2 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 3 0 6 2
          Stage 1 - - - - 2 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 4 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1619 - 1015 1082
          Stage 1 - - - - 1021 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1019 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1619 - 1015 1082
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 1015 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1021 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1019 -
 

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0 8.6
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 1015 - - 1619 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.002 - - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.6 - - 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

88



HCM 6th TWSC 1b. Existing 2022 PM 
1: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.4

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 13 3 3 230 377 33
Future Vol, veh/h 13 3 3 230 377 33
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 14 3 3 253 414 36
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 691 432 450 0 - 0
          Stage 1 432 - - - - -
          Stage 2 259 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 410 624 1110 - - -
          Stage 1 655 - - - - -
          Stage 2 784 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 409 624 1110 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 409 - - - - -
          Stage 1 653 - - - - -
          Stage 2 784 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 13.6 0.1 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1110 - 437 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.003 - 0.04 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.3 0 13.6 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

89



HCM 6th TWSC 1b. Existing 2022 PM 
2: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Briarpatch Rd 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 8 7 13 227 370 8
Future Vol, veh/h 8 7 13 227 370 8
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 9 8 14 249 407 9
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 689 412 416 0 - 0
          Stage 1 412 - - - - -
          Stage 2 277 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 412 640 1143 - - -
          Stage 1 669 - - - - -
          Stage 2 770 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 406 640 1143 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 406 - - - - -
          Stage 1 660 - - - - -
          Stage 2 770 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 12.6 0.4 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1143 - 490 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.012 - 0.034 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.2 0 12.6 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

90



HCM 6th TWSC 1b. Existing 2022 PM 
3: Briarpatch Rd & Site Drwy 2 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 3

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 10 6 0 2 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 10 6 0 2 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 64 64 64 64 64 64
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 16 9 0 3 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 9 0 - 0 25 9
          Stage 1 - - - - 9 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 16 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1611 - - - 991 1073
          Stage 1 - - - - 1014 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1007 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1611 - - - 991 1073
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 991 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1014 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1007 -
 

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0 8.6
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 1611 - - - 991
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - - 0.003
HCM Control Delay (s) 0 - - - 8.6
HCM Lane LOS A - - - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - - 0

91



HCM 6th TWSC 1b. Existing 2022 PM 
4: Site Drwy 2 & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.4

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 2 0 2 1 0
Future Vol, veh/h 1 2 0 2 1 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 2 0 2 1 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 3 0 4 2
          Stage 1 - - - - 2 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 2 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1619 - 1018 1082
          Stage 1 - - - - 1021 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1021 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1619 - 1018 1082
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 1018 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1021 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1021 -
 

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0 8.5
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 1018 - - 1619 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.001 - - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.5 - - 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

92



F U T U R E  “ N O - B U I L D ”  I N T E R S E C T I O N

A N A L Y S I S  

93



HCM 6th TWSC 2a. No Build 2024 AM
1: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.3

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 13 4 3 468 220 31
Future Vol, veh/h 13 4 3 468 220 31
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 86 86 86 86 86 86
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 15 5 3 544 256 36
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 824 274 292 0 - 0
          Stage 1 274 - - - - -
          Stage 2 550 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 343 765 1270 - - -
          Stage 1 772 - - - - -
          Stage 2 578 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 342 765 1270 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 342 - - - - -
          Stage 1 770 - - - - -
          Stage 2 578 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 14.6 0 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1270 - 393 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.003 - 0.05 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.8 0 14.6 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.2 - -

94



HCM 6th TWSC 2a. No Build 2024 AM
2: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Briarpatch Rd 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 11 7 13 454 225 3
Future Vol, veh/h 11 7 13 454 225 3
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 12 8 14 504 250 3
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 784 252 253 0 - 0
          Stage 1 252 - - - - -
          Stage 2 532 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 362 787 1312 - - -
          Stage 1 790 - - - - -
          Stage 2 589 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 357 787 1312 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 357 - - - - -
          Stage 1 778 - - - - -
          Stage 2 589 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 13.3 0.2 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1312 - 453 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.011 - 0.044 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.8 0 13.3 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

95



HCM 6th TWSC 2a. No Build 2024 AM
3: Briarpatch Rd & Site Drwy 2 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 3

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 7 8 0 1 0
Future Vol, veh/h 1 7 8 0 1 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 71 71 71 71 71 71
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 10 11 0 1 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 11 0 - 0 23 11
          Stage 1 - - - - 11 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 12 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1608 - - - 993 1070
          Stage 1 - - - - 1012 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1011 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1608 - - - 992 1070
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 992 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1011 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1011 -
 

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.9 0 8.6
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 1608 - - - 992
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.001 - - - 0.001
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.2 0 - - 8.6
HCM Lane LOS A A - - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - - 0

96



HCM 6th TWSC 2a. No Build 2024 AM
4: Site Drwy 2 & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.9

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 2 0 4 2 0
Future Vol, veh/h 1 2 0 4 2 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 2 0 4 2 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 3 0 6 2
          Stage 1 - - - - 2 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 4 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1619 - 1015 1082
          Stage 1 - - - - 1021 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1019 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1619 - 1015 1082
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 1015 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1021 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1019 -
 

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0 8.6
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 1015 - - 1619 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.002 - - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.6 - - 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

97



HCM 6th TWSC 2b. No Build 2024 PM
1: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.4

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 13 3 3 235 385 34
Future Vol, veh/h 13 3 3 235 385 34
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 14 3 3 258 423 37
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 706 442 460 0 - 0
          Stage 1 442 - - - - -
          Stage 2 264 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 402 615 1101 - - -
          Stage 1 648 - - - - -
          Stage 2 780 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 401 615 1101 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 401 - - - - -
          Stage 1 646 - - - - -
          Stage 2 780 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 13.8 0.1 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1101 - 429 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.003 - 0.041 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.3 0 13.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

98



HCM 6th TWSC 2b. No Build 2024 PM
2: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Briarpatch Rd 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.4

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 8 7 13 232 377 8
Future Vol, veh/h 8 7 13 232 377 8
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 9 8 14 255 414 9
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 702 419 423 0 - 0
          Stage 1 419 - - - - -
          Stage 2 283 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 404 634 1136 - - -
          Stage 1 664 - - - - -
          Stage 2 765 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 398 634 1136 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 398 - - - - -
          Stage 1 655 - - - - -
          Stage 2 765 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 12.7 0.4 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1136 - 482 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.013 - 0.034 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.2 0 12.7 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

99



HCM 6th TWSC 2b. No Build 2024 PM
3: Briarpatch Rd & Site Drwy 2 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 3

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 10 6 0 2 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 10 6 0 2 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 64 64 64 64 64 64
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 16 9 0 3 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 9 0 - 0 25 9
          Stage 1 - - - - 9 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 16 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1611 - - - 991 1073
          Stage 1 - - - - 1014 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1007 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1611 - - - 991 1073
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 991 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1014 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1007 -
 

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0 8.6
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 1611 - - - 991
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - - 0.003
HCM Control Delay (s) 0 - - - 8.6
HCM Lane LOS A - - - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - - 0

100



HCM 6th TWSC 2b. No Build 2024 PM
4: Site Drwy 2 & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.4

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 2 0 2 1 0
Future Vol, veh/h 1 2 0 2 1 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 2 0 2 1 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 3 0 4 2
          Stage 1 - - - - 2 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 2 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1619 - 1018 1082
          Stage 1 - - - - 1021 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1021 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1619 - 1018 1082
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 1018 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1021 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1021 -
 

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0 8.5
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 1018 - - 1619 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.001 - - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.5 - - 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

101



F U T U R E  “ B U I L D ”  I N T E R S E C T I O N  A N A L Y S I S

102



HCM 6th TWSC 3a. Future Build 2024 AM
1: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 16 5 5 468 220 37
Future Vol, veh/h 16 5 5 468 220 37
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 86 86 86 86 86 86
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 19 6 6 544 256 43

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 834 278 299 0 - 0

 Stage 1 278 - - - - -
 Stage 2 556 - - - - -

Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 338 761 1262 - - -

 Stage 1 769 - - - - -
 Stage 2 574 - - - - -

Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 336 761 1262 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 336 - - - - -

 Stage 1 764 - - - - -
 Stage 2 574 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 14.9 0.1 0
HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1262 - 388 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.005 - 0.063 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.9 0 14.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.2 - -

103



HCM 6th TWSC 3a. Future Build 2024 AM
2: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Briarpatch Rd 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 11 8 15 456 226 3
Future Vol, veh/h 11 8 15 456 226 3
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 90 90 90 90 90 90
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 12 9 17 507 251 3
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 794 253 254 0 - 0
          Stage 1 253 - - - - -
          Stage 2 541 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 357 786 1311 - - -
          Stage 1 789 - - - - -
          Stage 2 583 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 351 786 1311 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 351 - - - - -
          Stage 1 775 - - - - -
          Stage 2 583 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 13.2 0.2 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1311 - 458 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.013 - 0.046 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.8 0 13.2 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

104



HCM 6th TWSC 3a. Future Build 2024 AM
3: Briarpatch Rd & Site Drwy 2 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 3

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.2

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 7 8 2 2 0
Future Vol, veh/h 1 7 8 2 2 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 71 71 71 71 71 71
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 10 11 3 3 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 14 0 - 0 25 13
          Stage 1 - - - - 13 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 12 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1604 - - - 991 1067
          Stage 1 - - - - 1010 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1011 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1604 - - - 990 1067
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 990 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1009 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1011 -
 

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.9 0 8.6
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 1604 - - - 990
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.001 - - - 0.003
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.2 0 - - 8.6
HCM Lane LOS A A - - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - - 0

105



HCM 6th TWSC 3a. Future Build 2024 AM
4: Site Drwy 2 & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.6

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 3 0 11 4 0
Future Vol, veh/h 4 3 0 11 4 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 3 0 12 4 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 7 0 18 6
          Stage 1 - - - - 6 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 12 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1614 - 1000 1077
          Stage 1 - - - - 1017 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1011 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1614 - 1000 1077
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 1000 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1017 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1011 -
 

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0 8.6
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 1000 - - 1614 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.004 - - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.6 - - 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

106



HCM 6th TWSC 3b. Future Build 2024 PM
1: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.4

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 16 4 4 235 385 37
Future Vol, veh/h 16 4 4 235 385 37
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 18 4 4 258 423 41
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 710 444 464 0 - 0
          Stage 1 444 - - - - -
          Stage 2 266 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 400 614 1097 - - -
          Stage 1 646 - - - - -
          Stage 2 779 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 398 614 1097 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 398 - - - - -
          Stage 1 643 - - - - -
          Stage 2 779 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 13.9 0.1 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1097 - 428 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.004 - 0.051 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.3 0 13.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.2 - -

107



HCM 6th TWSC 3b. Future Build 2024 PM
2: SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) & Briarpatch Rd 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 2

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 8 8 14 233 378 8
Future Vol, veh/h 8 8 14 233 378 8
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 91 91 91 91 91 91
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 9 9 15 256 415 9
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 706 420 424 0 - 0
          Stage 1 420 - - - - -
          Stage 2 286 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 402 633 1135 - - -
          Stage 1 663 - - - - -
          Stage 2 763 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 396 633 1135 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 396 - - - - -
          Stage 1 653 - - - - -
          Stage 2 763 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 12.7 0.5 0
HCM LOS B
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1135 - 487 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.014 - 0.036 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.2 0 12.7 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.1 - -

108



HCM 6th TWSC 3b. Future Build 2024 PM
3: Briarpatch Rd & Site Drwy 2 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 3

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.3

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 10 6 1 3 0
Future Vol, veh/h 0 10 6 1 3 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 64 64 64 64 64 64
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 0 16 9 2 5 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 11 0 - 0 26 10
          Stage 1 - - - - 10 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 16 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1608 - - - 989 1071
          Stage 1 - - - - 1013 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1007 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1608 - - - 989 1071
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 989 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1013 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1007 -
 

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0 8.7
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 1608 - - - 989
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - - 0.005
HCM Control Delay (s) 0 - - - 8.7
HCM Lane LOS A - - - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - - 0

109



HCM 6th TWSC 3b. Future Build 2024 PM
4: Site Drwy 2 & Site Drwy 1 04/21/2022

22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3 - TIS Synchro 11 Report
A&R Engineering, Inc. Page 4

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.2

Movement EBT EBR WBL WBT NBL NBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 4 3 0 5 2 0
Future Vol, veh/h 4 3 0 5 2 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 4 3 0 5 2 0
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1
Conflicting Flow All 0 0 7 0 11 6
          Stage 1 - - - - 6 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 5 -
Critical Hdwy - - 4.12 - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 2.218 - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1614 - 1009 1077
          Stage 1 - - - - 1017 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1018 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1614 - 1009 1077
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 1009 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 1017 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 1018 -
 

Approach EB WB NB
HCM Control Delay, s 0 0 8.6
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBLn1 EBT EBR WBL WBT
Capacity (veh/h) 1009 - - 1614 -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.002 - - - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.6 - - 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A - - A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 -

110



T R A F F I C  V O L U M E  W O R K S H E E T S

111



22-061-Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3-TIS A&R Engineering
Traffic Volumes

1.SR 44 @ Site Drwy 1

A.M. Peak Hour

Condition L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot

Existing 2022 Traffic Counts: 3 459 0 462 0 216 30 246 13 0 4 17 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (%): 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

No-Build 2024 Volumes: 3 468 0 471 0 220 31 251 13 0 4 17 0 0 0 0

Total New Trips: 2 0 0 2 0 0 6 6 3 0 1 4 0 0 0 0

Future 2024 Traffic Volumes: 5 468 0 473 0 220 37 257 16 0 5 21 0 0 0 0

P.M. Peak Hour

Condition L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot

Existing 2022 Traffic Counts: 3 230 0 233 0 377 33 410 13 0 3 16 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (%): 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

No-Build 2024 Volumes: 3 235 0 238 0 385 34 419 13 0 3 16 0 0 0 0

Total New Trips: 1 0 0 1 0 0 3 3 3 0 1 4 0 0 0 0

Future 2024 Traffic Volumes: 4 235 0 239 0 385 37 422 16 0 4 20 0 0 0 0

SR 44 (Greensboro Road) SR 44 (Greensboro Road) Site Driveway 1 (Existing 
Northern Driveway) -

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

April 2022

Northbound

SR 44 (Greensboro Road) SR 44 (Greensboro Road)

Southbound

Site Driveway 1 (Existing 
Northern Driveway)

Eastbound

-

Westbound

112



22-061-Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3-TIS A&R Engineering
Traffic Volumes

2. SR 44 @ Briarpatch Rd

A.M. Peak Hour

Condition L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot

Existing 2022 Traffic Counts: 13 445 0 458 0 221 3 224 11 0 7 18 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (%): 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

No-Build 2024 Volumes: 13 454 0 467 0 225 3 228 11 0 7 18 0 0 0 0

Total New Trips: 2 2 0 4 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0

Future 2024 Traffic Volumes: 15 456 0 471 0 226 3 229 11 0 8 19 0 0 0 0

P.M. Peak Hour

Condition L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot

Existing 2022 Traffic Counts: 13 227 0 240 0 370 8 378 8 0 7 15 0 0 0 0

Growth Factor (%): 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

No-Build 2024 Volumes: 13 232 0 245 0 377 8 385 8 0 7 15 0 0 0 0

Total New Trips: 1 1 0 2 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0

Future 2024 Traffic Volumes: 14 233 0 247 0 378 8 386 8 0 8 16 0 0 0 0

SR 44 (Greensboro Road) SR 44 (Greensboro Road) Briarpatch Road -
Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

April 2022

Northbound
SR 44 (Greensboro Road) SR 44 (Greensboro Road)

Southbound
Briarpatch Road

Eastbound
-

Westbound

113



22-061-Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3-TIS A&R Engineering
Traffic Volumes

3.  Briarpatch Rd @ Site Drwy 2

A.M. Peak Hour

Condition L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot

Existing 2022 Traffic Counts: 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 7 0 8 0 8 0 8

Growth Factor (%): 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

No-Build 2024 Volumes: 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 7 0 8 0 8 0 8

Total New Trips: 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2

Future 2024 Traffic Volumes: 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 1 7 0 8 0 8 2 10

P.M. Peak Hour

Condition L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot

Existing 2022 Traffic Counts: 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 10 0 10 0 6 0 6

Growth Factor (%): 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

No-Build 2024 Volumes: 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 10 0 10 0 6 0 6

Total New Trips: 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Future 2024 Traffic Volumes: 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 10 0 10 0 6 1 7

- Site Driveway 2 (Existing 
Storage Driveway) Briarpatch Road Briarpatch Road

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

April 2022

- Site Driveway 2 (Existing 
Storage Driveway) Briarpatch Road Briarpatch Road

114



22-061-Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3-TIS A&R Engineering
Traffic Volumes

4. InterParcel Access

A.M. Peak Hour

Condition L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot

Existing 2022 Traffic Counts: 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 0 4 0 4

Growth Factor (%): 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

No-Build 2024 Volumes: 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 0 4 0 4

Total New Trips: 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 4 0 7 0 7

Future 2024 Traffic Volumes: 4 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 3 7 0 11 0 11

P.M. Peak Hour

Condition L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot L T R Tot

Existing 2022 Traffic Counts: 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 0 2 0 2

Growth Factor (%): 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

No-Build 2024 Volumes: 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 3 0 2 0 2

Total New Trips: 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 4 0 3 0 3

Future 2024 Traffic Volumes: 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 4 3 7 0 5 0 5

April 2022

Site Driveway 2 - SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ 
Northern Drwy to Gas Station 

SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ 
Northern Drwy to Gas Station 

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

Site Driveway 2 - SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ 
Northern Drwy to Gas Station 

SR 44 (Greensboro Rd) @ 
Northern Drwy to Gas Station 

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

115



116



117



     PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommendations 

Thursday, June 02, 2022, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/2/2022 

 

Requests 

6. Request by Jeremy Crosby, agent for William B. Jones to rezone 0.94 acres at 114 Briarpatch Road from R-2 to C-1. [Map 096B, Part 

of Parcel 063, District 1]. * Applicant is requesting to withdraw without prejudice.  

 

118



 
 

Staff recommendation is for approval to withdraw without prejudice at 114 Briarpatch Road [Map 096B, 063, District 3]. 

119



New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of 

campaign contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or 

more to an elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 21, 2022, at 6:30 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 

117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners' hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and 

meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions 

regarding the accessibility of the meeting, or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the 

meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

120



File Attachments for Item:

7. Request by Brandon Burgess, agent for Molfin Investments, LLC for conditional use at 170 Scott 

Road. [Map 102, Parcel 001002, District 3]. *

121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



     PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

     Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Staff Recommendations 

Thursday, June 02, 2022, ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 6/2/2022 

 

Requests 

7. Request by Brandon Burgess, agent for Molfin Investments, LLC for conditional use at 170 Scott Road. [Map 102, Parcel 001002, 

District 3]. * The applicant is requesting a conditional use to allow interior boat sales. The previous owner operated a classic car museum, 

which stored multiple old school mint condition vehicles wholly within the building. The applicant would like to continue a similar use 

displaying model boats for sales entirely within the existing building. He seeks to display 6-8 different model boats available for sale. He is 

also interested in selling life jackets, ski ropes, etc., that will complement his business.  

 

According to Sec. 66-102(a)-Uses Allowed of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, the proposed use of boat sales is not listed as an 

allowed use in the C-1 zoning district. However, the car museum occupied this building for over six years, and the building was designed 

as such. The car museum was closed around February of 2022. If operated wholly within the existing building and not allowed to expand 

beyond the existing museum area, the proposed use should not have an adverse effect on the surrounding properties. If approved, staff 

recommends that there be no outside display and the business remain wholly within the establishment. In addition, the proposed use shall 

not expand beyond the established showroom area of the previous owner, and the uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to 

those that conform to boat sales only and any other permitted use within C-1. By implementing the recommended conditions, the proposed 

project should not impact the adjacent properties, roads, or nearby intersections. In addition, there is no evidence that the proposed 

development would cause excessive or burdensome use of public services, nor should it affect police, fire protection, or sewer services.  

 

135



Staff recommendation is for approval of the proposed conditional use located at 170 Scott Road [Map 102, Parcel 001002, District 3] * 

with the following conditions: 

1) All storage and display of boats shall be wholly within the existing building, and no outside display or storage shall be allowed as 

stated in Section 66-102 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

2) This use shall not expand beyond the established showroom area of the previous owner. 

3) The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that conform to boat sales only and any other use or accessory 

use allowed within C-1.  

136



 New Business 
Adjournment 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of 

campaign contributions with the Planning & Development Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or 

more to an elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on June 21, 2022, at 6:30 P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 

117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners' hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-152 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and 

meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions 

regarding the accessibility of the meeting, or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the 

meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

137


	Top
	Item #4.	06022022 P&Z Minutes
	5-5-22 Minutes Draft

	Item #5.	06022022 P&Z Roger Reaves
	6-2-22 Map
	Reaves Rezoning
	061023LV
	Future Land Use 061023
	Reaves SR

	Item #6.	06022022 P&Z Jeremy Crosby, agent for William B. Jones
	6-2-22 Map
	Jones Rezoning
	22-061 Fish Tale Marina Boat Storage Building 3, 04-25-22
	096B063LV
	Future Land Use 096B063
	Jones SR

	Item #7.	06022022 P&Z Brandon Burgess, agent for Molfin Investments, LLC
	6-2-22 Map
	Molfin Rezoning
	102001002LV
	Future Land Use 102001002
	Molfin SR

	Bottom

